
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Tuesday, 21 July 2020 
 

Committee: Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 29 July 2020 
Time: 11.00 am 
Venue: THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING - PLEASE USE THE LINK ON THE AGENDA TO 

LISTEN TO THE MEETING 
 

Members of the public will be able to listen to this meeting by clicking on this link: 
Link for PMSC Meeting 29th July 2020 
 

Please note that this meeting will be made available through Microsoft Teams Live Events - your 
device will need to meet the minimum specification as detailed on the Microsoft website at this link: 
Device Specification 

 

 You will need to download MS Teams (free) and click on the link to listen to 
the meeting if you are using a PC 

 If using a mobile device, you will need to download the MS Teams app (free) 
before clicking the link 

 Use the link at 11.00 am on the day of the meeting and click on ‘Join as 
Guest’ 

 You may receive an error message or a request for login details if you try to 
gain access before 11.00 am 

  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 

Claire Porter 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
 

Members of Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
Claire Wild (Chair) 
Joyce Barrow 
Karen Calder 
Roger Evans 
Hannah Fraser 

Alan Mosley 
Cecilia Motley 
Peggy Mullock 
Dave Tremellen 
Leslie Winwood 

 

Your Committee Officer is:  
Julie Fildes  Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 257723 
Email:   julie.fildes@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTI0ODNkOGUtMTYzZC00NTI2LTllY2ItZGQwMjYyOTM2Zjc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22b6c13011-372d-438b-bc82-67e4c7966e89%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22dc2019cf-4276-4fe8-8b9f-abe6c1158a65%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 

3  Minutes of the meetings held on 10th June and 8th July 2020  
 
To consider the Minutes of the Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 10th June and 8th July 2020. [To follow] 
 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions, statements or petitions from the public of which 
members of the public have given notice.  Deadline for notification for this 
meeting is 11am on Monday 27th July 2020. 
 
 

5  Member Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice.  
Deadline for notification for this meeting is 4.30pm on Friday 24th July 2020. 
 
 

6  Update on the Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area 
Inspection (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
To receive a report from the Director of Children’s Services, Interim Acting Chief 
Executive. [Report attached, Appendix A to follow] 
 
Contact:  Karen Bradshaw  Tel 01743 254201 
 
 
 

7  Climate Change  
 
To consider the Climate Change report. [Report to follow] 
 
Contact:  Mark Barrow  Tel 01742 358676 
 
 



8  Financial Strategy (Pages 11 - 42) 
 
To receive a report on the Financial Strategy from the Director of Finance, 
Governance and Assurance and to consider the impact of the Covid-19 
Pandemic. [Report attached] 
 
Contact: James Walton  Tel 01743 258915 
 
 

9  Future Work Programme (Pages 43 - 48) 
 
To consider the future work programme of the Committee. [Report attached] 
 
Contact: Danial Webb  Tel. 01743 258509 
 
 

10  Date/Time of next meeting of the Committee  
 
The Committee is scheduled to next meet on 16th September 2020, 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 
 
 
Performance Management 
Scrutiny  
 
29 July 2020 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 
 

Update on the Special Educational Needs and Disability 
(SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 
 
 

Responsible Officer Karen Bradshaw 
e-mail:  karen.bradshaw@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: (01743) 254201  

 
 
 
1.  Summary 
 
1.1 Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND) is a statutory 

requirement under the Children and Families Act 2014. It requires local 
partners to work together to deliver a coordinated offer across 
education, health and social care for children and young people (aged 
0 – 25) who have a special educational need and/or disability. 

 
1.2 Shropshire Council works in partnership with the CCG and other key 

stakeholders including parents and carers ensuring that the SEND offer 
meets the needs of children and young people; supporting them to 
achieve their full potential and prepare for life as an adult.   

 
1.3 A joint SEND CQC and Ofsted Inspection took place in Shropshire 

across education, health and social care between 27 January and 31 
January 2020. The final letter was published on 6 May 2020. 

 
1.4 As a result of the findings of this inspection and in accordance with the 

Local Area Inspection Framework the Chief Inspector determined that 
a Written Statement of Action (WSoA) is required because significant 
areas for improvement were identified. The WSoA is due to be 
published on 25th September 2020. 

 

1.5 This report provides detail on this inspection and provides an update 
on progress to date. 

 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

mailto:karen.bradshaw@shropshire.gov.uk


 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 2 

 

 

2.  Recommendations 
 

2.1  That the contents of this report and the actions identified are noted. 
 
2.2 That Scrutiny Committee continue to monitor the implementation of 

SEND within Shropshire.  
 
2.3 Note the date for publication of the WSoA as 25 September 2020 

 

2.4  That the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to appoint 

one of its members to be a champion for SEND.   

  
 

REPORT 

 

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

(NB this will include the following: Risk Management, Human Rights, 
Equalities, Community, Environmental consequences and other Consultation) 

3.1 Disability is one of recognised characteristics of the Equality Act 2010. 

3.2 Children and young people with special educational needs and 
disabilities (SEND) experience a range of health and social care 
inequalities. A robust EHC process should assist with improving the co-
ordination of services and enhancing their life chances 

4.  Financial Implications 

4.1 Whilst there are no direct financial implications arising from this 
inspection, in order to address the issues identified it is likely that 
investment will be required.  This has not been quantified at this point 
in time and will be developed as the -WSoA is further developed.  

4.2 The high rate of school exclusions does impact significantly on the 
High Needs Block of the Dedicated Schools grant, and reductions in 
the rate of exclusions will reduce the high costs placed on this budget. 

4.3  In order to realise long term savings in the high needs block it is likely 
that short term investment will be required in order to provide effective 
support services to schools as part of a multi-agency response to early 
identification and meeting need. This will be further developed within 
the WSoA.    

 

Page 2



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 3 

 

 

 

5.  Background 

 

5.1 The Children and Families Act 2014 required local areas to introduce 
significant reforms with regard to Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND) and placed requirements on local authorities and 
CCG’s to work together to implement Education, Health and Care 
Plans (EHCP) for  children and young people with special educational 
needs and/or disabilities up to the age of 25.  

 
5.2 Currently within Shropshire the implementation is overseen by the 

SEND Strategic Board, which feeds into the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  

 
5.3 A joint SEND CQC and Ofsted Inspection took place in Shropshire 

across health, social care and education between 27 January and 31 
January 2020. The inspection is therefore not just of the work of 
Shropshire Council, but also of the CCG and its commissioned health 
providers and other key stakeholders.  The final letter was published on 
6 May 2020. 

 
5.4 As a result of the findings of this inspection and in accordance with the 

Children Act 2004 (Joint Area Reviews) Regulations 2015, the Chief 
Inspector determined that a Written Statement of Action is required 
because of the areas for improvement identified. Ofsted have agreed 
via a joint meeting with LA and CCG meeting that the date of 
publication of the Written Statement of Action is September 25th 2020. 

 
5.4.1 Over 50% of local areas have received a WSoA. From January 2019 to 

January 2020 there were 30 inspections 17 of which have a WSOA 
(57%). 

5.4.2 A higher proportion of inspections have resulted in a WSoA being 
issued as the inspections have progressed, this is because many of the 
early inspections were not able to consider impact as it was too early to 
be able to demonstrate this 

 
5.5 Inspectors identified 6 significant concerns; this is low in comparison 

with other areas (average 10). 

5.6 The inspectors acknowledged that the LA and CCG were aware of 
what the areas for improvement were; they acknowledged that a clear 
plan of how to improve the gaps had been identified, but there was 
reduced confidence in the system’s ability to deliver at pace on the 
actions required due to the other pressures within the system, 
particularly around the healthcare system.   

Page 3



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 4 

 

 

 
5.7 A workshop (face to face) jointly presented by the LA and CCG took 

place on 23rd June 2020. This workshop initiated the joint Written 
Statement of Action (WSoA).   

 
5.8 A refresh of the governance arrangements will form part of the 

discussions, but a regular meeting at executive level has already been 
put into place to ensure senior oversight and accountability will be 
maintained through the SEND partnership board. 

 
5.9 The inspection  
 

The inspection was led by one of Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMIs) from 
Ofsted, with a team of inspectors including an HMI and a Children’s 
Services Inspector from the CQC. 

 

5.9.1 Key Findings during the Inspection:  

 

 Strategic leadership across the area is weak. This is most notable in 
the leadership of the CCG. The implementation of the SEND reforms 
by the CCG has been too slow. There has been inconsistent leadership 
for SEND within the CCG and a lack of cohesive partnership working. 
Consequently, the focus on SEND has not been sharp enough due to 
competing health priorities across Shropshire. It is not clear how SEND 
services will be given greater priority in the area. 

 There is no effective pathway for specialist assessment of autism 
spectrum disorder (ASD) for children over the age of five. Recently, 
leaders have taken effective action to ensure that some children are 
assessed. However, there remains a large number of children waiting 
for assessment. A sustainable assessment model to address this 
ongoing problem has not been implemented. 

 Children and young people experience significant waits for speech and 
language assessment and treatment. The current speech and 
language therapy (SALT) service specification is not fit for purpose. 
Consequently, the SALT service is not meeting the needs of children 
and young people with SEND in the area. 

 Area leaders’ self-evaluation identifies some of the key issues in 
education, health and care provision for children and young people with 
SEND. Some of the area leaders’ action plans and actions are 
informed by this self-evaluation. However, it is not clear what area 
leaders hope to achieve as a result of their activities because their 
plans have no measurable success criteria. Moreover, the area’s 
SEND action plan does not include crucial health elements, such as 
community health services. Therefore, area leaders ‘ability to improve 
the range and quality of services for children and young people with 

Page 4



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 5 

 

 

SEND and their families is limited. This is a significant gap and means 
that children and young people do not get the help and support that 
they need. 

 Area commissioners do not make effective use of the data available to 
them. Consequently, they do not accurately commission and plan 
services that meet the full range of children and young people’s needs. 
Area leaders have been able to demonstrate that they are making 
some improvements. However, the absence of a SEND-specific joint 
strategic needs assessment to steer the direction of this work, 
combined with the lack of a robust action plan with measurable 
success criteria, means that area leaders are unable to evaluate the 
success of their actions. 

 The area met the requirement to convert statements to education, 
health and care (EHC) plans within statutory timescales. However, 
there are inconsistencies in the quality of input from education, health 
and care into the plans. This is particularly so for those plans written 
before January 2019. 
 

5.9.2.1 Areas for improvement and any actions already undertaken: 

 

i. LA Specific Improvements 

 

a) The high rate of exclusions for children and young people with 
an EHC plan and the high rate of repeat fixed-term exclusions 
for those receiving SEND support.  An immediate action to 
review and present the data on school exclusions and 
understanding the issues has commenced. Further action to 
review the services available to support schools to identify SEN 
and engage with appropriate services to be identified within the 
WSOA.  

 

ii. Health specific improvements:  

a) Inconsistent leadership for SEND- the CCG’s Director of 
Partnerships has responsibility for SEND and is working with the 
Executive Director of Children’s Service at Shropshire Council to 
develop the WSoA jointly with other partners. 

b) Ineffective pathway for specialist assessment of autism 
spectrum disorder (ASD) for children over the age of five. 
Commissioners are working on the pathway as a matter of 
urgency although funding streams remain an issue. 

c) Significant waits for speech and language assessment and 
treatment- the CCG Director of Partnerships has arrange to 
meet with the director lead for Shropshire Community NHS Trust 
to discuss the changes and proposals for reducing waiting times 
for speech and language therapy. Shropshire Community NHS 

Page 5



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 6 

 

 

Trust are attending the initial workshop to support development 
of the WSoA. Significant progress and review of the SaLT 
waiting list has been undertaken and a new way of working has 
been developed and will be implemented through restore and 
recovery. 

d) Waiting times for CYP accessing intervention once assessed by 
Bee-U service is too long. This needs to be addressed. 

e) The number of young people leaving care who have received a 
health passport is low. A plan needs to be developed to improve 
this and will form part of the WSoA. 

f) Therapy services do not proactively work with local early help 
services to share information and provide a joined-up approach 
for families who are receiving support from both teams. A joint 
approach is being developed and will be overseen through the 
SEND Partnership Board. 

g) Several health services do not seek feedback from parents, 
carers and young people about the service being delivered. The 
CCG Director of Partnerships has had an initial meeting with the 
Chair and Trustee of the Parent and Carers Council (PACC) in 
Shropshire.  

h) Lack of inclusion of health services input into the area’s SEND 
action plan. This will be addressed through joint partnership 
working and an immediate action to review the health chapter of 
the SEND strategy has been commenced. 
 

5.9.2.2 System improvements: 
 

a) Inconsistent input from partners into EHC plans. This has been 
agreed to be an action within the WSoA but needs further 
development. 

b) Knowledge of the SEND reforms and EHC assessment and 
planning processes across services is inconsistent. An 
immediate action to ensure consistent training jointly, is 
undertaken to ensure all partners understand the revised SEND 
framework and the implications for both strategic decision 
making and delivery of services. 

c) Co-production of services, to continue to be developed and be 
an integral part of the SEND strategic board and CCG 
Partnership Board. 

d) Support of specialised practitioners within specialist schools is 
inadequate- this needs to be addressed. 

e) No SEND-specific joint strategic needs assessment. Shropshire 
Council is leading on this as an action with support and input 
from partners and will be incorporated into the WSoA. 

f) EHC plans are not updated in a timely way following an annual 
review. This will be an action within the WSoA and will need a 
review of training and an oversight of plans. 

Page 6



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 7 

 

 

 
5.10  Good Practice 

There were many areas of good practice identified within the report. Below 
are some examples of this good practice: 
 

a) Generally speaking, academic outcomes for children and young people 
with SEND are strong.  This is particularly so for pupils with an EHC 
plan. 

b) The service offered by Beam has a good uptake and has been able to 
support more than double the anticipated number of children and 
young people. 

c) Improvements have been made to the ASD diagnostic pathway for 
under-fives. Further work on the older age groups is being undertaken 
following a workshop with partners. 

d) Children and Young people with severe speech and language 
impairment benefit from intensive SALT and specialist teacher input, 
with joint care assessments and care planning. 

e) The public health nursing team has dedicated SEND practitioners who 
help. 

f) The children’s community nursing team respite service helps to reduce 
anxiety for parents of children with acute and/or complex needs 

g) There is effective joined up working between the occupational 
therapists provided by health and LA services. A trusted assessor 
agreement is in place. 

h) There is good support from education, health and social care 
professionals at key transition points. Therapists take a proactive 
approach to transition planning. 

i) The development of the hub model to provide specialist support for 
mainstream schools is having a positive impact on the lives of children 
and young people with SEND. 

j) Area leaders continually look for ways to develop and improve the local 
offer. 

k) The percentage of 17-year olds receiving SEND support who were in 
education, employment or training is above the national average. 

l) Parents speak highly of the support and advice they receive from 
PACC, the Information, Advice and Support Service, and Autism West 
Midlands. Representatives of these services are strong advocates for 
children and young people with SEND. 

 

6 Ongoing actions: 

 

6.1 Senior partnership working has improved significantly.  Executive 
leadership is in place and a strategic board for SEND is in the process 
of being commenced. 

Page 7



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 8 

 

 

6.2 Further dialogue with PACC (Parents and Carers Council) is underway 
and plans to continue to work together in developing true co-production 
of services.  

6.3 The strategic SEND Board have agreed that a SEND statement of 
Intent be developed highlighting the need to reduce health inequalities 
as requested by parent group, which has been signed up to by all 
partners involved. A key set of principles adopted and agreed by all 
partners is to be developed as an action from the workshop. 

6.4 The three work streams are: Joint Commissioning, Preparing for 
Adulthood and Inclusion. Impact & monitoring of these groups is 
through the SEND strategic Board. 

6.5 The Local Offer has been relaunched and continues to be developed 
further following feedback from the inspection and following the 
workshop.  

6.6 Quality processes to improve EHCP’s continues and is embedded as 
business as usual. Improvements have been noted. 

 

7 Challenges: 

7.1 Commissioning capacity for children’s and young people’s services 
may be an issue during restoration and recovery phase. 

7.3 The pace of developing joint commissioning across the local area  

needs a clearer sense of direction and commitment from all partners. 

7.4 Reducing the number of school exclusions is a medium-term challenge 
that requires the engagement of the whole school community. 

 

8   Opportunities:  

8.1  Increased challenge and pace to secure change and improve long term 
outcomes for Shropshire children and young people with SEND 

8.2  Development of co-production, partnership working and wider 
engagement of stakeholders across the local area.  

8.3  opportunity to identify early those children and young with SEND who 
will require access to specialist services into adulthood will support 
better commissioning decisions within adult services and promote 
economic independence.     

Page 8



 
Performance Management Scrutiny 29 July 2020: Update on the Special Educational 
Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection 

 

 

 
Please contact Karen Bradshaw (01743) 254201 9 

 

 

 
 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 
 

Joint Area SEND Inspection in Shropshire – report published 6 May 2020 
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
 

Cllr Edward Potter 

Local Member 

 

All Members 
 

Appendices 

 

Appendix A: Joint Area SEND Inspection in Shropshire report 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 
Cabinet 
6th July 2020 
Performance Management 
Scrutiny Committee 
29th July 2020 

 Item 
 
 
 
 

 

FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2020/21 – 2021/22 
 

Responsible Officer James Walton 
Email: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: (01743) 258915 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 The Council approved the Financial Strategy on 27 February 2020, shortly before 

the impact of Covid-19 hit the UK. The Country entered lockdown from 23 March 
2020 and Council Services were closed, delivered remotely or moved into 
emergency provision. Over two and a half thousand Council staff were required 
to work from home and/or make themselves available for redeployment. 
Business continuity measures were immediately put into place across the 
Council. Emergency spend was sanctioned, protocols to support suppliers, 
contractors and local businesses were implemented and a Council Tax deferral 
scheme was hurriedly introduced for the months of April and May. In addition to 
the longer term implications for Council Tax collection, other vital income sources 
for the Council – Business Rates, On-Street Parking, Theatre Severn – have 
been impacted. The requirement to deliver essential services to vulnerable 
people, the infrastructure costs, overheads and running costs supported by this 
income have not diminished and have, in many cases, grown. 
 

1.2 The Government have announced multiple waves of funding and initiatives in 
response to the Covid-19 outbreak. Direct funding for the Council has included 
specific ringfenced grants and two tranches of general emergency funding 
amounting to almost £18m. Costs and income loss for the Council are estimated 
to exceed £36m over the financial year, demonstrating a potentially significant 
shortfall in the grant made available. 
 

1.3 This report begins to set out our updated position. Only limited information is 
currently available, and while still in the midst of the pandemic, it is not possible 
to draw up a plan to navigate the medium term with any certainty. What is clear, 
however, is that the Financial Strategy approved by Council in February was 
already obsolete before the 2020/21 Financial Year began. The revised Medium 
Term Financial Strategy, attached at Appendix 1, sets out our understanding of 
the Council’s financial position, focusing on the 2020/21 and 2021/22 Financial 
Years. 

 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



Performance Management Scrutiny Committee, 29th July 2020: Financial Strategy 2020/21 – 2021/22 

 

 
 2 

 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Members: 
 
A. Note the revised financial projections for the Council leading to a forecast funding 

gap of £18.5m in the 2020/21 Financial Year, and the options identified to resolve 
this. 

B. Note the revised financial projections for the 2021/22 Financial Year leading to a 
forecast funding gap of £33.3m in that year. 

C. Note that with additional government intervention to support the shortfall in 
Covid-19 costs in 2020/21, confirmation of one-off grants for 2021/22, delivery of 
existing savings targets in both financial years and utilisation of the Financial 
Strategy Reserve, a balanced budget over the two financial years can still be 
achieved. 
  
 

Page 12



 

REPORT 
 

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
3.1 The development and delivery of the Council’s Financial Strategy is the key 

process in managing many of the Council’s strategic risks. The opportunities 
and risks arising are assessed each time the document is refreshed for Cabinet 
consideration. The Council’s Strategic Risks are reported separately, but the 
Financial Strategy makes specific reference to the Council’s ability to set a 
sustainable budget (the highest of the Council’s key strategic risks).  

 
3.2 Setting the Financial Strategy and agreeing the detailed changes necessary to 

deliver the agreed budget for the next financial year, will take into account the 
requirements of the Human Rights Act, any necessary environmental 
appraisals and the need for Equality and Social Inclusion Impact Assessments 
(ESIIA) and any necessary service user consultation. 

 
4. Climate Change Appraisal 
 
4.1 The Council’s Financial Strategy, approved in February 2020, included 

proposals to deliver a reduced carbon footprint for the Council. The impact of 
Covid-19 has seen benefits in terms of carbon efficiency across the Council 
which have the potential to provide significant opportunities going forward. 
Services have been delivered on-line with the majority of staff working from 
home. This, in turn, has led to reductions in printing volumes, increases in online 
interaction, reduced staff travel and a resulting positive impact on climate 
change and pollution levels. Future plans will look to lock in these benefits  

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 This report sets out the financial implications for the Council over the 2020/21 

and 2021/22 Financial Years. Details are contained within the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy attached at Appendix 1. 

 
6. Background 

 
5.1  Council approved the Financial Strategy 2020/21 – 2024/25 on 27 February 

2020. The impact of the Covid-19 outbreak and associated actions and 
implications for the Council has necessitated the production of an updated 
report for consideration by Cabinet in July 2020. 

 
5.2 This report updates Cabinet and includes details of the latest budgetary position 

for the Council. The existing quarterly revenue and capital monitoring reports 
will provide details on spending and income delivery in-year for Cabinet to 
consider.  

 
5.3. As necessary, further reports will be brought to Cabinet and Council to update 

the Budget and Financial Strategy position as further information becomes 
available, and greater understanding of the financial implications of Covid-19 

Page 13



 

 
 4 

 

on the Council is obtained. 
 

 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 
 

Financial Strategy 2020/21 - 2024/25 – Council, 27 February 2020 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 To 2024/25 

 

  

Page 14



 

 
 5 

 

 

 
 
 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy – July 2020 

 
2020/21 – 2025/26 

 

 
 
 
 

James Walton 
Director of Finance, Governance & Assurance 

Shropshire Council 
Shirehall 

Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 

SY2 6ND 

Appendix 1 

Page 15



 

 
 6 

 

1. Foreword from Section 151 Officer – James Walton  
   
2. Medium Term Financial Strategy Introduction  
 2.1 MTFS Process  
 2.2 National Context   
 2.3 Local Context for Shropshire  
   
3. Impact on 2020/21 Budget  
 3.1 2020/21 Budget Approved  
 3.2 Additional Costs of COVID-19  
 3.3 Loss of Income from COVID-19  
 3.4 Impact on Savings Due to COVID-19  
 3.5 Impact on Council Tax and Business Rates from 

COVID-19 
 

 3.6 Government Funding  
 3.7 Other Changes Affecting 2020/21  
 3.8 Addressing the Impact on 2020/21 Budget  
   
4. Revenue Resources 2021/22 – 2025/26  
 4.1 Core Government Funding  
 4.2 Council Tax  
 4.3 Business Rates  
 4.4 Total Funding  
   
5. Expenditure Pressures 2021/22-2025/26  
 5.1 Savings Plans 

5.2 Total Expenditure 
 

   
6. Revenue Financial Strategy (Sustainable Budget)  
 6.1 Funding Gap and Temporary Solutions  
 6.2 Plans for a Sustainable Budget  
  
7. Financial Stability  
 7.1 General Fund Balance  
 7.2 Earmarked Reserves  
  

Page 16



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

 
It is unusual for the Council to publish a revised Medium Term Financial Strategy only 
four months after Full Council approved the Financial Strategy in February. The impact 
of Coronavirus, or Covid-19, has, however, necessitated this action.  
 
As set out in previous iterations of this document, Shropshire Council‘s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy considers the local authority’s financial position over the medium 
term taking into account national and local funding and resources, and compares this 
to the demand on the services the Council needs and wants to deliver, providing 
solutions to deliver a balanced budget as required by statute. It is not legal for a 
Council to set an unbalanced budget; by law our costs must be contained within our 
available funding, creating tensions between aspiration and reality, quality and 
necessity. It is, nevertheless, unwise to focus on the short-term delivery of a balanced 
budget at the expense 
of long-term outcomes, medium term sustainability or the achievement of wider 
strategic objectives. 
 
In these unusual times, however, this is exactly the course of action we are being 
forced to take. The financial impact of Covid-19 on Shropshire Council had immediate 
effect from the date the country was placed into lockdown from 23 March 2020. The 
2019/20 accounts reveal that the cost to Shropshire for the eight days of lockdown 
falling within that financial year was around £387,000. For Shropshire this fell, almost 
immediately, after recovering from the impact of flooding, the official cost of which was 
£460,000, but when considering the impact on road and highways infrastructure was 
in reality, in excess of £1m.  
 
The approved Budget for the 2020/21 Financial Year was effectively obsolete before 
the year began, with plans for savings, service transformation and service delivery put 
on hold, to differing degrees, to deal with unprecedented implications of Covid-19 for 
the local authority, the public and local businesses alike.   
 
To try to frame and understand our position, and set out an approach to managing it, 
we need to consider the following: 

 What are the direct implications of Covid-19 and lockdown and how long will 
they last? 

 What does a transitionary period look like, what will it mean, and how long could 
it last? 

 What will the environment look like when we return to some sort of normality, 
and when might that be? 

 
In terms of the direct impact of Covid-19 on the Council we need to understand: 

 What has been the direct cost of Covid-19 on the local authority, what has been 
led by national requirements and what has resulted from a local approach. 

 What direct income has been lost, including significant income generating 
sources such as off-street parking, Theatre Severn and planning income. 

 What has the impact been on Council Tax and Business Rates collection rates 
in the short and medium term. 

 What has been the impact on delivery of savings proposals. 
 

Page 17



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 8 

 

The delivery of our 2020/21 savings proposals is currently being reviewed. The 
programme set out savings of almost £19m, and while around £4m is currently 
anticipated to be directly impacted by Covid-19, the balance of £15m must be 
delivered if the budget is to be balanced this year. An early RAG assessment has 
identified only £5m of savings in the Green category, placing £10m in Amber or Red 
and will be the focus for delivery over the remainder of the financial year. 
   
At the time of writing, we estimate the direct financial impact of Covid-19 to be around 
£36m for the 2020/21 financial year, based on our current understanding. With a 
loosening of lockdown conditions this may reduce; with the impact of a second wave 
of the pandemic this would likely increase. At present we have received an £18m 
contribution toward this estimated cost and this is broadly in line with spending and 
income loss to date. The need for additional funding, income guarantees or even 
capitalisation of costs are all options we are putting to government to help manage this 
position over the remainder of the year. 
 
The 2021/22 Financial Year is equally unclear. We now know that ‘Fair Funding’ – the 
comprehensive redesign of the current funding mechanism for local government in 
England – has been delayed from its already delayed implementation date of 1 April 
2021. Instead, one-off grants received in 2020/21 are likely to be rolled forward, 
potentially without uplift, for another year. Shropshire Council has historically been, 
and continues to be, funded by government at levels below the England Average and 
this inequality, on top of the impact of Covid-19, will now be perpetuated for a further 
year.  
 
Within this report, due to the time of writing, there are far more questions raised than 
answers given. It is necessary, however, to provide an update on the scale of the 
issues and the methodology for solving them at the first opportunity – clarifying that 
the budget approved in February 2020 needs significant revision in light of the 
conditions we are now in. To this end, there is very little that can be predicted in the 
current year and next, and only broad assumptions applied for the financial years 
beyond. 
 
The impact of Covid-19 has, of course, provided opportunities. The Council has proved 
services can be delivered with the majority of staff working from home, services can 
be delivered on-line and Members can exercise their democratic duties through virtual 
meetings. We have seen huge reductions in printing volumes, increases in online 
interaction, minimal staff travel and the positive impact on climate change and pollution 
levels this brings. We will look to harness and lock in these and other benefits wherever 
we can. Where services are being delivered on-line we will look to improve the user 
experience for the future, rather than revert to old and increasingly outdated delivery 
models. We have initially grouped this work under five headings and this approach will 
be developed and revised and will ultimately help inform a new, emerging Corporate 
Plan and Financial Strategy for future years.  

 People and Organisation – Skills, engagement, training and development 

 Assets and Resources – Asset management, franchise models, capital receipts  

 Tools and Systems – IT Infrastructure, system architecture, productivity 

 Process – Automation, digital, paperless 

 Customers and Partners – Delivery partners, micro economies, collaboration 

Page 18



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 9 

 

 
While the impact of Covid-19 is unparalleled and needs to be resolved, the Council 
must not lose sight of the fact that an underlying, structural funding gap is yet to be 
resolved. The above approaches, with a revised Fair Funding Strategy and favourable, 
multi-year Spending Round plan for the Local Government sector as a whole, will all 
play a fundamental role in creating financial sustainability for Shropshire Council.    
 
 

  

Page 19



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 10 

 

2.1 Medium Term Financial Strategy Process 

The medium term financial strategy (MTFS) spans a period of five years and is formally 

agreed by Full Council each year in the February preceding the first financial year of 

the strategy.  

The first year of the MTFS represents the budget strategy for the next financial year. 

The compilation of the budget strategy involves detailed budget development of each 

service area within the Council and work begins on this process from September 

onwards. 

The overarching five years strategy runs alongside the budget strategy work and will 

be informed by significant service changes or demographic changes that the Council 

is facing, but more significantly will be informed by government announcements on the 

likely level of funding.  

Each year the Government provide a Provisional Local Government Finance 

Settlement in December and a Final Local Government Finance Settlement towards 

the end of January. This will detail all grant funding that the Council will receive in the 

next financial year and will also give authorities specific regulations around levels of 

Council Tax that can be raised. Alongside this the Council is also carrying calculations 

such as the Council Tax Base to determine how many properties the Council can raise 

Council Tax against. This information all feeds into the Resources side of the Financial 

Strategy and assumptions are made regarding any uplift or inflationary changes for 

future years within the MTFS. 

In previous years the Government have provided multi year funding settlements which 

have given the Council the ability to predict with some accuracy, the level of grant 

income that it will receive from the Government. The last four year multi settlement ran 

from 2016/17 to 2019/20 and the Government announced a one year settlement for 

2020/21 with the intention of implementing the Fair Funding Review for 2021/22. Since 

the COVID-19 pandemic has hit the UK in the spring of 2020 and is anticipated to 

continue for the majority of the 2020/21 financial year, the Government has announced 

that the Fair Funding Review will now be delayed a further year until 2022/23. The 

Council will therefore be planning for a one year settlement for 2021/22 now. 

During December and January, the Council will consult with the general public 

regarding the budget proposals for the next financial year. Feedback from this 

consultation will then inform the final Medium Term Financial Strategy that is agreed 

by Full Council in February.  

Figure 1 below details a simplified timeline of the various processes for developing the 

medium-term financial plan each year. 

  

Page 20



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 11 

 

FIGURE 1 – Development of Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Apr 
 

May 
 

Jun 
 
 
 

Jul 
 
 

 
Aug 

 
 

 
Sep 

 
 

 
Oct 

 
 

 
Nov 

 
 

 
Dec 

 
 

 
Jan 

 
 

 
Feb 

 
 

 
Mar 

New Financial Year Begins 

Roll forward MTFS to next 5 years and highlight 
any known service changes/issues or 

Government announcements 

Discuss savings targets 
required over the term of 
the MTFS and produce 

detailed savings 
proposals 

Detailed budget build 
up for next Financial 

Year completed 

Provisional Local 
Government Finance 
Settlement received 

Council Tax Base 
calculated for the next 

Financial year 

Final Local Government 
Finance Settlement 

received  

Medium Term Financial Strategy Approved by Full Council 

Budget Consultation 
takes place for 6 

week period 

Identify 
demographic 

pressures for the 
Council and any 

service pressures 
arising in current 
year’s budget to 

confirm funding gap 
within MTFS 

Page 21



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

2.2 National Context 

The COVID-19 pandemic has not only had a significant impact on the lives of UK 
residents, but also on the UK economy. The UK economy is in recession and the 
Government has had to provide unprecedented financial support to keep the economy 
going through lockdown. 
 
There have been a number of financial support packages provided by the Government 
including: 
 

 £6.6bn to support health services 

 £3.2bn for local government 

 £0.9bn for food packages for clinically vulnerable people 

 £1.3bn to NHS to support discharge from hospitals into care 

 £600m for social care providers for infection control 

 £0.5bn Hardship fund for Council Tax Support claimants 

 Business Rate relief to all retail, hospitality and leisure businesses 

 Small Business Grant Funding 

 Retail, hospitality and leisure grant funding for any business with a rateable 
value of less than £51k 

 £3.2m Support for rough sleepers 

 Furlough scheme for employers 

 Local Authority Discretionary Grants Fund 

 Self Employment Income Support Scheme 

 Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan Scheme 
 
The level of financial investment required cannot be quantified nationally at this stage 
given the status of the pandemic, however the level of borrowing that the Government 
has had to undertake to support the public and the economy is significant and is likely 
to impact on public finances in this country for many years in the future.  
 

2.3 Local Context 
 
As outlined in Section 2.2 a number of national grant schemes have been passed to 
Local Authorities because the Local Authority will be incurring the spend directly, or 
because we can passport funding to the relevant organisation that is intended to 
receive the support.  
 
Shropshire Council has received the following allocations of funding from the 
Government: 
 

 £17.918m to fund the impact of COVID-19 on the Council 

 £4.602m to passport to social care providers for infection control 

 £1.54m from the Hardship Fund for Council Tax Support Claimants 

 £43.9m estimated for Business Rate relief to all retail, hospitality and leisure 
businesses 

 £57m estimated for Small Business Grant Funding 

 £34m estimated for Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Funding 

 £12k for support to rough sleepers 

Page 22



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 13 

 

 £4.5m for the Local Authority Discretionary Grants Fund 
 

The Government has also provided two additional sums of £0.229m for maintaining 
essential Bus Services and £0.288m for reopening high streets safely following the 
lockdown.  
 
In addition to the Central Government funding received, Shropshire Council has 
secured an additional £0.737m from the Marches Investment Fund to support local 
businesses affected by COVID-19 that have not been eligible to obtain the 
Government funding provided for businesses. 
 
Where the funding is generally being passported to business or other organisations, 
then the Local Authority is able to manage the spend to match the eligibility criteria 
that has been determined for these specific support packages. The general funding to 
Councils to fund the impact of COVID-19, however, is not sufficient to meet the cost 
pressures arising from the pandemic. This is the case for Shropshire Council but also 
nationally this is being raised as a concern for all local authorities.  

Page 23



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

3.1 2020/21 Approved Financial Strategy 

On 27th February 2020, Full Council approved the Financial Strategy for 2020/21 – 
2024/25 which included the revenue budget for 2020/21. 
A summary of the Financial Strategy for 2020/21 is detailed in Figure 2 below: 
 
Figure 2: 2020/21 Approved Financial Strategy 

 
Since the approval of this budget, the United Kingdom has suffered the COVID-19 
pandemic, which has resulted in a lockdown of the country for a number of months 
during the spring and into the summer of 2020. It is anticipated that the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic will be felt for the remainder of the 2020/21 financial year to some 
degree. For the Council the impact has resulted in significant additional costs having 

2020/21

£

Resources:

Council Tax -163,933,777

Business Rates -51,720,281

RSG -6,218,750

Collection Fund Surplus/(Deficit) -3,648,763

Government Grants in Core Funding (IBCF, NHB, RSDG, SCG)¹ -32,411,060

Local Income (F&C², Other Grants, Specific Government Grants, Internal Recharges) -317,529,850

TOTAL FUNDING -575,462,481

Expenditure:

Gross Budget Requirement from 2019/20 593,079,737

Inflationary Growth (Pay, Prices, Pensions) 4,466,890

Demography & Demand 21,563,167

Service Specific Pressures 1,971,738

Local Generated Pressures (incl. change to specific grants and income changes) 576,055

Previous saving plans removed as unachievable 2,594,550

Savings to be achieved in 2020/21 -18,725,200

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 605,526,937

FUNDING GAP FOR 2020/21 30,064,456

Funded by:

One off Core Government Grants -27,411,061

One off use of Cost of Investment Budget -2,750,000

Financial Strategy Reserve 96,605

BALANCED BUDGET FOR 2020/21 0

¹ IBCF - Improved Better Care Fund, NHB - New Homes Bonus, RSDG - Rural Services Delivery Grant, SCG - Social Care Grant

² F&C - Fees and Charges

Page 24



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 15 

 

to be incurred to support local communities and service users through the lockdown 
and COVID-19 pandemic. There has also been a number of council functions that 
have had to be closed or stopped in line with the lockdown restrictions, and the 
financial impact on revenue streams to the Council that the slowdown of the economy 
will have on the county in particular. 
 
As the impact of this is considered to be so significant, it is necessary to consider a 
revision to the 2020-21 Budget before moving forward to planning the potential 
impact on future years of the Financial Strategy. The financial implications of the four 
areas identified in sections 3.2 to 3.5 is almost £36m. 
 
 

3.2 Additional Costs of COVID-19 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in the Council incurring additional one off costs 
in supporting the communities of Shropshire. The Council established 10 workstreams 
surrounding the response to the COVID-19 pandemic and costs have been captured 
against each of these workstreams to identify where cost pressure have arisen. The 
difficulty in projecting the full year costs for each workstream is due to the unknow 
timeframe that the COVID-19 response and lockdown requirements will be in place. 
The Council produces a monthly return to Government on the anticipated costs and 
has taken part in benchmarking workshops with other local authorities to ensure that 
assumptions used are reasonably consistent across the country.  
 
The associated workstreams and anticipated costs that will be incurred over the 
course of 2020/21 is projected as follows: 
 

COVID-19 Workstream 2020/21 
Cost 

Projection 
£000 

Type of Costs included 

Adult Social Care 3,849 Costs of supporting the care market 
providers and additional staffing costs to 
cover those staff self-isolating. 

Business Continuity 3 Staff overtime during immediate COVID-
19 response 

Business & Economy 14 Additional vehicles required for Civil 
Enforcement officers to undertaken social 
distancing. 

Children’s Services 5,011 Additional Home to School transport costs, 
additional social care placements as a 
result of pandemic, additional support 
costs for additional care needs during 
lockdown 

Communications 310 Additional IT kit to facilitate mobile 
working. Delays to implementing WAN 
replacement. Staff overtime 

Emergency Expenditure 1,118 Claims for compensation from leisure 
service providers due to closing facilities. 

Page 25



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 16 

 

Increase in bad debt write offs. 

Excess Deaths 15 Temporary mortuary secured during peak 
of pandemic. 

Homelessness 559 Costs of using B&B’s for homeless. 

Public Health 340 PPE costs 

Vulnerable Communities 342 Support to vulnerable communities, 
including food packages and support for 
food banks. Small grants projects to 
support local community groups. 

TOTAL 11,561  

 
 

3.3 Loss of Income from COVID-19 

Additional costs are only one element of the financial pressure arising from COVID-
19. In addition, it has been necessary to close a number of Council income earning 
facilities due to the lockdown restrictions, and there have also been knock on effects 
to some services income projections due to a general slowdown in the economy 
resulting from COVID-19. 
 
The main income shortfalls that are anticipated in 2020/21 as a result of COVID-19 
are: 
 

Source of Income £’000 

Parking Income 3,919 

Shire Services 3,629 

Theatre Severn 2,097 

Planning Services 1,048 

Streetworks income 1,003 

Property Rental Income Incl. Shopping 
centre 

578 

Public Transport – P&R 507 

Traded Income with Schools 482 

Adult Social Care Income  459 

Leisure Centres 406 

Old Market hall 188 

Registrars 182 

Outdoor Partnerships 143 

Museums  138 

Other 592 

TOTAL 15,371 

 
In the main the assumptions used are that facilities will remain closed until the end of 
September, however this does differ depending on the individual council setting.  
 
 

3.4 Impact on Savings Due to COVID-19 

Page 26



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 17 

 

The Council agreed new savings of £18.725m to be delivered over the course of 
2020/21. As a result of the pandemic and the prioritisation of services towards 
supporting the public of Shropshire through the effects of the lockdown, some of the 
proposals have not been able to be progressed or developed at the speed that was 
originally anticipated, and so it is considered that there is an increased risk of non-
delivery relating to the savings proposals in 2020/21. 
 

 Saving 
Target 

 
£000 

Anticipated Non 
Delivery due to 

COVID-19 
£000 

Percentage 
Impact 

 
% 

Adult Services 7,097 1,920 27 

Children’s Services 2,446 1,050 43 

Corporate Budgets 613 0 0 

Finance Governance & 
Assurance 

504 0 0 

Legal & Democratic Services 400 0 0 

Place 5,035 496 10 

Strategic Management Board 0 0 0 

Workforce & Transformation 2,630 132 5 

TOTAL 18,725 3,598 19 

 
 

3.5 Impact on Council Tax and Business Rates from COVID-19 

In response to the pandemic, the Council allowed Council taxpayers to apply to defer 
the first two payments of Council tax due in April and May, and instead pay their 
Council Tax in the months June to March. The Council has had 7,134 households that 
have taken up this offer, which has had a short term cash impact but would not impact 
on the income collected overall for the year. 
 
It should be noted however that the general slowdown in the economy and increase 
in unemployment is anticipated to have an effect on the level of Council tax that will 
be collected in 2020/21. The Council had assumed a collection rate of 98.3% for 
2020/21 and our assumptions based on the first 2 months data are that there will be a 
2% reduction in the collection rate as at the end of 2020/21. This would result in a loss 
of £4.224m for 2020/21 in the collection fund. 
 
Income from Business Rates have similarly reduced, and whilst the Government has 
provided support to a number of businesses in the shape of Business Rate Reliefs 
and Business Grants, it is still anticipated that the impact of COVID-19 will result in a 
reduction in Business Rates income being collected in 2020/21. A 2% reduction has 
also been assumed in the collection rate. 
 

 £’000 

Council Tax Reduction 4,224 

Business Rate Reduction 956 

TOTAL 5,180 

 

Page 27



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 18 

 

It is general practice that a reduction in the collection rate for the financial year is 
absorbed within the collection fund for the year, and then this would result in a 
collection fund deficit being estimated for the year. This would then bear out financially 
for the main preceptors in the following financial year when the amount of precept and 
collection fund deficit is determined in February. Therefore it would be reasonable to 
assume that the loss identified above would be realised in 2021/22. 
 
However, as the pandemic is considered as an exceptional event it is anticipated that 
the Council would be able to recognise the impact on the Collection Fund in the current 
financial year. It is anticipated that the general slowdown in the economy may have a 
longer term benefit on the collection rates within the Collection Fund and therefore 
impact future years financial strategies, and so by dealing with the immediate impact 
in 2020/21 this may help to spread the overall impact on the Council’s finances. 
 
 

3.6 Government Funding 

In recognising the cost pressures that local authorities would face during the COVID-
19 pandemic the Government announced funding of £1.6billion on 19 March 2020. 
Shropshire Council received £8.972m in relation to this funding. 
 
During the early part of April, local authorities produced the first estimate for 
Government of the financial impact of Coronavirus for 2020/21 which identified that 
the initial funding provided would not be sufficient to meet the financial pressures 
experienced.  
 
In response to this the Government announced a further £1.59billion in additional 
funding on 18 April 2020. Shropshire Council received a further £8.946m from this 
allocation taking the total Government funding to £17.918m. 
 
A comparison of funding received across the CIPFA Family Group shows that 
Shropshire Council received the 5th highest level of funding per head of population at 
£56.43. 
 
Figure 3: Comparison of COVID-19 Funding by Family Group 

Page 28



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 19 

 

 
 
 

3.7 Other Changes Affecting 2020/21 Budget 

Whilst there are always some changes that will impact on the budget once it has been 
agreed, there are some specific changes that are predicted to impact on the 2020/21 
budget since the outturn position for 2019/20 has been established and these 
pressures are likely to be carried forward into 2020/21. 
 
The outturn position for 2019/20 showed the following ongoing monitoring pressures: 
 

Service Area £’000 Nature of Ongoing Monitoring Pressure 

Adult Services 429 Housing – temporary accommodation 

Children’s Services 682 Staffing/agency pressures related to 
demography 

Finance, Governance & 
Assurance 

573 Housing Benefits subsidy income shortfall 

Place 958 Reduced rental income and increased 
contract costs within asset base, reduced 
income in planning 

Workforce & Transformation 512 Single front door saving not achieved 

TOTAL 3,154  

 
Whilst some of these have already been addressed within the budget strategy for 
2020/21 such as the pressures in Children’s Services and the single front door saving, 
there are some that remain a pressure for 2020/21. The Council will need to take 
appropriate management action to manage these pressures down, or identify 
compensatory savings that will offset these pressures in 2020/21. 
 
The Council also included pay inflation of 2% for 2020/21 and future years. It is looking 
increasingly likely that this level of inflation will be insufficient as the National Joint 
Council looks to consult unions on a figure of 2.75%. This results in an additional 
financial pressure of £0.711m in 2020/21. 

£56.43

£0.00

£10.00

£20.00

£30.00

£40.00

£50.00

£60.00

£70.00

Funding per head of population - CIPFA Family Group

Page 29



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 20 

 

 
In addition to the COVID-19 impact on the savings proposals for 2020/21, the delivery 
of the £18.725m saving proposals has been RAG rated. It should be noted that the 
red savings of £8.560m includes the £3.598m identified in section 3.4 as being delayed 
due to COVID-19. It is assumed that management will take further steps during the 
course of 2020/21 to fully deliver these savings plans. 
 

 Green 
£ 

Amber 
£ 

Red 
£ 

Total 
£ 

Adult Services 1,122,000 3,065,010 2,910,170 7,097,180 

Children's Services 240,462 68,960 2,137,068 2,446,490 

Corporate Budgets 399,820 50,000 163,000 612,820 

Finance, Governance and 
Assurance 70,000 213,620 220,000 503,620 

Legal and Democratic Services 265,310 0 134,690 400,000 

Place 2,764,460 1,001,610 1,269,390 5,035,460 

Strategic Management Board 0 0 0 0 

Workforce and Transformation 483,630 420,170 1,725,830 2,629,630 

TOTAL 5,345,682 4,819,370 8,560,148 18,725,200 

 
 

3.8 Addressing the Impact on 2020/21 Budget 

The full impact on the 2020/21 budget as a result of all the items listed in sections 3.2 

-3.7 are an additional financial pressures that more than outstrips the funding received 

by the Government. The impact on the 2020/21 budget is demonstrated in Figure 4 

below: 

Figure 4: Impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 Budget 

Page 30



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 21 

 

 

In addressing the budget gap there are a number of options that the Council can 

pursue: 

1. Lobby Government for additional funding 

2. Lobby Government for additional freedoms to capitalise spend 

3. Spending Freeze in 2020/21 

4. Use of Financial Strategy Reserve in 2020/21 

 

1. Lobby Government for additional funding 

The Council has been making regular representations to government that the funding 

that is received in insufficient to meet the costs of delivering services. A meeting was 

held between the Council and Luke Hall MP, the Parliamentary Under Secretary of 

State at MHCLG, where assurances were provided that the current inequitable funding 

methodology would be addressed under the Fair Funding Review in April 2021. As 

2020/21

COVID-19 Impact 

and Other Changes Revised 2020/21

£ £ £

Resources:

Council Tax -163,933,777 0 -163,933,777

Business Rates -51,720,281 0 -51,720,281

RSG -6,218,750 0 -6,218,750

Collection Fund Surplus/(Deficit) -3,648,763 5,180,000 3.5 1,531,237

Government Grants in Core Funding (IBCF, NHB, RSDG, SCG)¹ -32,411,060 0 -32,411,060

Local Income (Specific Government Grants) -200,462,900 -17,918,000 3.6 -218,380,900

Local Income (F&C², Other Grants, Internal Recharges) -117,066,950 15,371,000 3.3 -101,695,950

TOTAL FUNDING -575,462,481 2,633,000 -572,829,481

Expenditure:

Gross Budget Requirement from 2019/20 593,079,737 0 593,079,737

Inflationary Growth (Pay, Prices, Pensions) 4,466,890 711,000 3.7 5,177,890

Demography & Demand 21,563,167 0 21,563,167

Service Specific Pressures 1,971,738 11,561,000 3.2 13,532,738

Local Generated Pressures (incl. change to specific grants and income changes) 576,055 0 576,055

Previous saving plans removed as unachievable 2,594,550 0 2,594,550

Savings to be achieved in 2020/21 -18,725,200 3,598,000 3.4 -15,127,200

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 605,526,937 15,870,000 621,396,937

FUNDING GAP FOR 2020/21 30,064,456 18,503,000 48,567,456

Funded by:

One off Core Government Grants -27,411,061 -27,411,061

One off use of Cost of Investment Budget -2,750,000 -2,750,000

Financial Strategy Reserve 96,605 96,605

BUDGET GAP FOR 2020/21 0 18,503,000

¹ IBCF - Improved Better Care Fund, NHB - New Homes Bonus, RSDG - Rural Services Delivery Grant, SCG - Social Care Grant

² F&C - Fees and Charges

Ref to 

MTFS

Page 31



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 22 

 

highlighted earlier in the Financial Strategy, it has now been announced that the Fair 

Funding Review will be delayed for another year, therefore the Council is continuing 

to lobby the Government for immediate funding support. As a result of this lobbying, 

the Leader of the Council has been requested to outline the Funding position of the 

Council to Robert Jenrick MP, Secretary of State for MHCLG, and this outlines the 

financial position for the Council and requests both additional funding for COVID-19 

and the removal of the structural funding gap as a result of the inequalities in the 

current funding mechanism. 

2. Lobby Government for Income Guarantee 

 

The County Council’s Network (CCN) have called on the Government to set out an 

initial £5bn guarantee to compensate councils for their lost income in addition to 

providing emergency funding for additional costs. It is intended that this would cover 

lost income from council tax, business rates, fees and charges and other non-

commercial income. For Shropshire Council such a guarantee would provide funds of 

£19.973m, however it is currently projected that only £17.792m would be required to 

offset the financial pressure relating to COVID-19. 

 

3. Lobby Government for additional freedoms to capitalise spend 

 

Previously when local government has experienced significant one off spend, the 

Government has increased the flexibilities in relation to capitalise spend. This has 

been suggested as a potential way of funding the shortfall in funding across local 

government. If this is agreed by the Government this would allow the Council to borrow 

the £17.792m shortfall relating specifically to the COVID-19 crisis in 2020/21, over a 

25 year period and then make annual repayments from 2021/22 onwards. 

 

This would have the effect of increasing the costs of borrowing revenue budget by just 

under £1m from 2021/22, which will add an ongoing budget pressure in future years 

but will address the immediate shortfall. 

  

 

 

 

4. Spending Freeze 

 

The Council has been required to implement pending freezes now in the majority of 

the last five years in order to manage budgetary pressures that arise during the year. 

Whilst this is a short term solution only, the implementation of spending freezes has 

generated up to £3m worth of one of savings in the year. In previous years the 

introduction of spending freezes has been done in the second half of the year, however 

given the level of financial pressures identified for 2020/21, it is an option for Cabinet 

to consider implementing a spending freeze earlier. 

 

5. Use of Financial Strategy Reserve in 2020/21 

 

Page 32



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

 
 23 

 

Should the first four options not generate the level of funding required to close the 

budget gap in 2020/21, it is possible for the Council to utilise the Financial Strategy 

Reserve in 2020/21. This reserve has been earmarked for use in 2021/22 in order to 

temporarily close the structural funding gap, and so by utilising this in 2020/21 instead, 

this means that the Council will have an unsustainable budget for 2021/22 and if 

significant additional savings cannot be identified, a Section 114 notice may need to 

be considered by the Chief Financial Officer. This would mean that no new 

agreements for spending can be entered into until an emergency budget is agreed by 

Full Council. 

 

An illustration of the five options to manage the pressures in year are mapped out 

below in Figure 5: 

 

Figure 5: Options for Funding Shortfall in 2020/21 Budget 

 

Option 1 Option 2  Option 3 Option 4 Option 5

£ £ £ £ £

BUDGET GAP FOR 2020/21 18,503,000 18,503,000 18,503,000 18,503,000 18,503,000

Additional Funding Provided by Government FOR COVID-19 -17,792,000

Income Guarantee Provided by the Government -17,792,000

Capitalisation of COVID-19 costs -17,792,000

Spending Freeze (based on 9 months of year) -4,500,000

Use of Financial Strategy Reserve -711,000 -711,000 -711,000 -14,003,000 -18,503,000

REVISED BUDGET GAP FOR 2020/21 0 0 0 0 0

Financial Strategy Reserve Balance - 01/04/20 20,466,600 20,466,600 20,466,600 20,466,600 20,466,600

Use of Reserve in 2020/21 -711,000 0 -711,000 -14,003,000 -18,503,000

Financial Strategy Reserve Balance - 31/03/21 19,755,600 20,466,600 19,755,600 6,463,600 1,963,600

Page 33



REVENUE EXPENDITURE 2021/22 – 2025/26 
 

 
 24 

 

4.1 Core Government Funding 

As outlined earlier in the MTFS, the Government has now indicated that the Fair 
Funding Review planned for implementation in 2021/22, will now be delayed a further 
year and instead implemented in 2022/23. In the MTFS that was agreed in February 
2020, the Council had assumed that Revenue Support Grant and New Homes Bonus 
would be phased out over the next 2 years and that Core Funding Grants such as 
Improved Better Care Fund, Rural Services Delivery Grant and Social Care Grant 
would be rolled into the Fair Funding Review. However with no detail regarding how 
the Fair Funding Review would impact on the Council, no assumptions had been built 
in currently for any additional funding for the Council from 2021/22 onwards. 
 
Now that the Fair Funding Review has been delayed a year, it can now be assumed 
that the Core Government Grants that were previously anticipated to be rolled into the 
Fair Funding Review, will now be available for 2021/22 and they will be paid at the 
same cash limited levels as in 2020/21. This therefore impacts the projections for 
future years resources that was previously agreed in February, and so these have now 
been updated accordingly. 
 

 
 

4.2 Council Tax 

The pandemic is predicted to have an impact on collection rates for Council tax in 
2020/21, however this it is also considered that this will have a longer term impact, 
whilst the economy takes time to rebuild again, and unemployment levels are reduced, 
thereby reducing the demand for Council Tax Support and improving collection rates. 
It is also likely that the lockdown during 2020/21 will have stalled housebuilding 
throughout the county and so growth within the taxbase may be below the levels that 
have been experienced in the last few years. Therefore the projections for future year’s 

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

2024/25

£

2025/26

£

Revenue Support Grant - as at Feb 2020 4,179,066 2,139,383 0 0 0

Grants included in Core Funding - as at Feb 2020:

Improved Better Care Fund 0 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus 4,592,570 2,227,140 0 0 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant 0 0 0 0 0

Social Care Grant 0 0 0 0 0

Revised Revenue Support Grant 6,320,073 4,213,382 2,106,691 0 0

Revised Grants included in Core Funding:

Improved Better Care Fund 9,547,340 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus 4,592,570 2,227,140 0 0 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant 6,614,130 0 0 0 0

Social Care Grant 7,882,890 0 0 0 0

Difference 26,185,367 2,073,999 2,106,691 0 0

Page 34



REVENUE EXPENDITURE 2021/22 – 2025/26 
 

 
 25 

 

council tax collection have been revised to allow for an initial reduction in taxbase and 
then a gradual increase back to previous levels of growth. 
 

 
 
 

4.3 Business Rates 

As per the reduction in Council Tax projections for future years, a similar reduction is 
anticipated for Business Rate income whilst the economy rebuilds after the effects of 
the pandemic. Therefore this is anticipated to impact on the increase in rateable value 
that was anticipated and the growth in the multiplier. 
 

 
 
 

4.4 Total Funding for 2021/22 – 2025/26 

The impact of the pandemic has had an impact on the future revenue resources 
projected for the Council over the next five years within the MTFS. The revised funding 
projections are shown in Figure 6 below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

2024/25

£

2025/26

£ Assumptions

Council Tax - as per Feb 20 MTFS 173,287,521 183,173,997 193,625,808 204,674,538 0

Increase in Council tax 1.99%; Increase in 

Social Care Precept 2%, Increase in taxbase 

1.65% across all years

Revised Council Tax 170,474,685 179,048,389 188,985,514 199,769,464 211,166,963

Increase in Council tax 1.99%; Increase in 

Social Care Precept 2%, Increase in taxbase 

0% for 2021/22, 1% for 2022/23, 1.5% for 

2023/24, 1.65% for 2024/25 - 2025/16

Difference -2,812,836 -4,125,608 -4,640,294 -4,905,075 211,166,963

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

2024/25

£

2025/26

£
Assumptions

Business Rates - As per Feb 2020 41,361,163 42,003,606 42,656,027 43,318,581 0
1.3% growth in multiplier and 0.25% growth in 

rateable value for all years

Revised Business Rates 40,728,547 40,962,889 41,434,577 42,078,159 42,731,738

2021/21 0% growth in multiplier and rateable 

value; 2022/23 0.5% increase in multiplier 

0.075% increase in rateable value; 2023/24 1% 

growth in multiplier 0.15% growth in rateable 

value; 2024/25 and 2025/25 1.3% growth in 

multiplier 0.25% growth in rateable value

Difference -632,616 -1,040,717 -1,221,450 -1,240,422 42,731,738

Page 35



REVENUE EXPENDITURE 2021/22 – 2025/26 
 

 
 26 

 

Figure 6: Total Funding for 2021/22 – 2025/26 

 

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

2024/25

£

2025/26

£

Council Tax 170,474,685 179,048,389 188,985,514 199,769,464 211,166,963

Business Rates:

Business Rates Collected 40,728,547 40,962,889 41,434,577 42,078,159 42,731,738

Business Rates - Energy Renewable Schemes 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

Top Up Grant 10,031,260 10,031,260 10,031,260 10,031,260 10,031,260

RSG 6,320,073 4,213,382 2,106,691 0 0

Collection Fund:

Council Tax 500,000 500,000 500,000

Business Rates -500,000 -500,000 -500,000

NET BUDGET 228,454,566 235,155,921 243,458,041 252,778,883 264,829,961

Grants included in Core Funding:

Improved Better Care Fund 9,547,340 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus 4,592,570 2,227,140 0 0 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant 6,614,130 0 0 0 0

Social Care Grant 7,882,890 0 0 0 0

CORE FUNDING 257,091,496 237,383,061 243,458,041 252,778,883 264,829,961

Local Income

Fees and charges (including income savings deliverable from 

prior years)
86,384,981 88,703,677 91,202,251 93,944,845 93,944,845

Other Grants and contributions 27,000,030 27,000,030 27,000,030 27,000,030 27,000,030

Specific Grants  (excluding Core Funding Grants above) 183,913,000 183,858,550 183,811,430 183,771,122 183,771,122

Internal Recharges 5,963,040 5,963,040 5,963,040 5,963,040 5,963,040

TOTAL FUNDING 560,352,547 542,908,358 551,434,792 563,457,920 575,508,998

Page 36



REVENUE FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021/22 – 2025/26 
 

 
 27 

 

5.1 Savings Plans for 2021/22 

The MTFS agreed in February 2020, assumed that savings plans of £3.850m that had 
previously been identified for delivery in 2021/22 would be delivered. Latest 
projections on savings delivery plans for 2021/22 shows the following RAG ratings: 
 

 Green Amber Red TOTAL 

Adult Services   1,141,290 1,141,290 

Children’s Services  47,440 14,550 61,990 

Finance, Governance & Assurance 21,920   21,920 

Place  850,000 1,735,290 2,585,290 

Workforce & Transformation   39,510 39,510 

TOTAL 21,920 897,440 2,930,640 3,850,000 

 
Further work is required during the course of 2020/21 to ensure that plans are in place 
for all of these savings to be fully delivered from the 1 April 2021. 
 

5.2 Total Expenditure 

There are no projected changes to expenditure during the period 2021/22 – 2025/26 
apart from the compensatory changes to the specific grant changes resulting from the 
Core Grants being rolled forward, therefore the total expenditure is detailed in Figure 
7 below. However it should be noted that if the Government does allow capitalisation 
of COVID-19 related costs, then an additional £1m would need to be found for 
borrowing costs from 2021/22 onwards. It is intended that the cost of investment 
budget would be cut accordingly by a compensatory £1m to offset this, thus having no 
impact on the bottom line of total expenditure each year. 
 
Figure 7: Total Expenditure for 2021/22 – 2025/26 

 

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

2024/25

£

2025/26

£

Original Gross Budget Requirement 605,526,937 593,662,590 582,538,686 600,169,156 621,475,058

Inflationary Growth :

Pay 2,743,338 2,819,197 2,897,208 2,977,435 3,059,884

Prices 1,901,746 1,988,548 2,080,762 2,115,831 2,151,491

Pensions 0 0 0 0 0

Demography & Demand 11,966,550 13,846,297 14,829,238 16,152,790 17,594,472

Service Specific Pressures 144,179 95,225 97,522 102,254 107,216

Local Generated Pressures:

Elections 700,000       -700,000 700,000        

Specific Grants Changes between years -20,324,030 -26,464,240 -2,274,260 -42,408 0

One off investment in IT infrastructure -1,101,130

Estimated Cost of Investment - Approved 1,265,000 1,760,000

Invest to Save Fund for delivery of future savings -5,250,000

Energy Renewable Schemes -60,000

Adjustment to Gross budget offset by Income changes

Savings

Savings from prior years- 2018/19 - Approved -3,850,000 -4,468,930

Remove 2019/20 Red Savings Unachievable

2019/20 Red savings Achievable in 2020/21

New Savings

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 593,662,590 582,538,686 600,169,156 621,475,058 645,088,121

Page 37



REVENUE FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021/22 – 2025/26 
 

 
 28 

 

6.1 Funding Gap and Temporary Solutions 

The funding gap for 2021/22, which was previously anticipated to be £37m in February 
2020, has now reduced to £33.3m mainly due to the carry forward of core government 
grants of which the Revenue Support Grant had not been assumed to reduce 
significantly in 2021/22. As a result of this, these one off grants can be used to close 
the funding gap in 2021/22 and the Council will only need to drawdown part of the 
Financial Strategy Reserve in 2021/22, and then use the balance of this in 2022/23 to 
reduce the potential funding gap arising in the year of the Fair Funding Review. 
 
Figure 8: Funding Gap for 2021/22 – 2025/26 

 
 
 

6.2 Plans for a Sustainable Budget 

The 2022/23 to 2025/26 financial years within the Financial Strategy assume that the 
Government will complete the Fair Funding Review and the implications of this will be 
experienced during these years. It is difficult at this stage to predict with any accuracy 
as to what the implications will be for Shropshire Council however it is currently 
assumed that one off sources of funding such as the Rural Services Delivery Grant, 
Improved Better Care Fund and New Homes Bonus will be removed in future years. 
With growth in services such as social care anticipated to continue to grow as per 
current demography, this results in a Funding gap of £39.6m in 2022/23 growing to 
£69.6m in 2025/26. 
 
The Council has been building up a Financial Strategy Reserve over the last four years 
in order to provide the Council with some resilience to the impact that Fair Funding 
may have on the Council’s budget. Depending on the direction that the Government 
decides to take over the cost pressures for COVID-19 in 2020/21, will dictate how 
much of the Financial Strategy Reserve is available to help relieve the pressure on the 
2022/23 financial year. If the Government agree to fully fund the COVID-19 costs, or 
allow local authorities to capitalise the costs of COVID-19, then the full balance will be 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£ £ £ £ £

Resources 560,352,547 542,908,358 551,434,792 563,457,920 575,508,998

Expenditure 593,662,590 582,538,686 600,169,156 621,475,058 645,088,121

Gap in year 33,310,043 39,630,329 48,734,364 58,017,138 69,579,122

One Off Funding to be used:

One off Grants:

Rural Services Delivery grant 9,547,340 0

New Homes Bonus - One Off -407,434 -2,772,861 -5,000,000 -5,000,000 -5,000,000

Improved Better Care Funding 6,614,130 0

Social Care Funding - One Off 7,882,890

Use of Reserves:

Financial Strategy Reserve 9,673,117 10,794,000

TOTAL ONE OFF FUNDING 33,310,043 8,021,139 -5,000,000 -5,000,000 -5,000,000

Remaining Gap to be Funded 0 31,609,190 53,734,364 63,017,138 74,579,122

Page 38



REVENUE FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021/22 – 2025/26 
 

 
 29 

 

available, which is what has been assumed in section 6.1. This would then be fully 
released in 2022/23. In the meantime the Council will continue to make 
representations to Government that the funding for Social Care has not been sufficient 
for a number of years and this needs to be addressed in the Funding Review. The 
outcome of the Fair Funding Review will give the Council a more accurate picture of 
the funding gap that needs to be addressed, but in the meantime the Council is taking 
a number of steps to deliver a sustainable budget for the Council. 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown has forced the Council to operate in a different 
way, and whilst this has been challenging, there have been some real benefits arising 
from working in a different way. It is important that the Council capitalises on the 
opportunity that this situation has presented and the organisation does not shift back 
to how things were done prior to the pandemic. The investment that the Council has 
undertaken in the Digital Transformation Programme has proven to be essential during 
this period, and it is important that the Council now builds on this to truly transform the 
long term working practices of the Council which will help towards delivering a more 
sustainable budget.  
 
The main focus of these transformation plans will include: 

 Home working for staff on a more permanent (albeit not full-time) basis;  

 Utilising a single, more condensed Council site in Shrewsbury Town Centre ; 

 Automating all manual processes (look to become cashless, paperless, digital 
by default); 

 Deliver services remotely and therefore reduce travel across the county to 
provide an environmental and financial benefit; 

 Review which services have not been delivered during COVID-19 and consider 
if they could be stopped permanently; 

 How a local delivery hub model would operate both for customers, partners and 
staff. 
 

It is essential that these transformation plans complement activities already planned 
and outlined in the Economic Growth Strategy, the Asset Management Strategy, the 
Commercial Strategy and the Workforce Digital Strategy that have been approved by 
the Council, in order that the operating model in use at the Council supports the key 
activities required to deliver the Council’s Corporate Plan and deliver a more 
sustainable budget. 

Page 39



IMPACT ON 2020/21 BUDGET 
 

7.1 General Fund Balance 

During 2019/20 the General Balance held was reduced in order to fund the overspend 
within the revenue budget, to temporarily fund an overspend that occurred within the 
trading unit of Shire Services, and in order to fund the Bellwin threshold due to flooding 
experienced in February 2020. This has resulted in the General Fund being even 
further away from the risk assessed level that has been determine within the MTFS in 
February 2020. The risk assessed level quantifies the level of General Fund that may 
need to be held to protect against unforeseen expenditure or financial pressures 
arising each year, and the reasons for drawing down just over £2m of General Fund 
to support the revenue budget demonstrates the need to hold a sufficient level of 
General Fund Balance for such emergency situations.  
 
Figure 9 below shows the projected General Fund Balance over the life of the Financial 
Strategy, compared to the risk assessed level and shows the shortfall against this risk 
assessed level. 
 
Figure 9: General Fund Projection and Comparison with Risk Assessed Level 

 
 
 

7.2 Earmarked Reserves 

The level of earmarked reserves has reduced in 2019/20 by £3.7m as services have 

utilised balances that had been previously committed to specific projects. This leaves 

earmarked reserves at £68.0m as at 31st March 2020.  

A projection of the level of earmarked reserves that will be held over the next 5 years 

of the financial strategy is demonstrated in the graph below. The level of reserves 

reduces by approximately £10m each year until 2023. This is in line with the planned 

reduction in the Financial Strategy Reserve as outlined in section 6.1. Overall there is 

anticipated to be a 59% reduction in earmarked reserves over the life of the MTFS. 

 

 

 

 

2020/21

£

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

2024/25

£

2025/26

£

Opening General Fund Balance 13,510,175 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082

Repayment of Shire Services overspend 81,907 0 0 0 0 0

Closing General Fund Projected 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082 13,592,082

Risk Assessed Level of General Fund Balance 19,242,000 19,430,000 26,039,000 27,952,000 29,925,000 29,925,000

Shortfall in General Fund Balance -5,649,918 -5,837,918 -12,446,918 -14,359,918 -16,332,918 -16,332,918

Page 40



Cabinet, 6th July 2020: Financial Monitoring Report – Outturn 2019/20 

 

 
 31 

 

 

Figure 10: Projected Earmarked Reserves 2020/21 – 2025/26 

 

 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

   
 

  

Performance Management 

Scrutiny Committee  

 

29 July 2020  

 

Item 

 

 

Public 

 

 

 

Performance Management Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

 

Responsible officer 

Danial Webb, overview and scrutiny officer 

danial.webb@shropshire.gov.uk 

01743 258509 

 

1.0 

 

Summary 

1.1 

 

This paper presents the Performance Management Scrutiny Committee’s proposed 

work programme.  

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 

2.1 Committee members to:  

 agree the proposed committee work programme attached as appendix 1 

 note the current task and finish groups attached as appendix 2 

 suggest changes to the committee work programme and 

 recommend other topics to consider. 

 

3.0 Background  

 

3.1 

 

 

 

 

Following the declaration of the COVID-19 pandemic, Shropshire Council initially 

suspended overview and scrutiny committees in common with most other local 

authorities. Now that the scale of the pandemic has become clearer, the council has 

recommenced its overview and scrutiny process, albeit with a smaller committee 

structure. 

 

3.2 At present, Shropshire Council is conducting all of its non-health-related scrutiny 

through its Performance Management Scrutiny Committee. This committee is 

meeting monthly in order to provide the time to carry out an extended programme of 

work. The Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee will also continue to operate. 

Work is also underway to restart the work of the joint health scrutiny committee with 

Telford and Wrekin Council. 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9

mailto:danial.webb@shropshire.gov.uk


Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 20 May 2020 Work Programme 2020-2021 

 
 

3.3 Task and finish groups are also continuing as before. The committee administration 

of task and finish groups is being routed through the Performance Management 

Scrutiny Committee, rather than their thematic committee. 

 

3.4 

 

Shropshire Council has recently agreed to resume all of its overview and scrutiny 

committees from September 2020. Future items on the Performance Management 

Scrutiny Committee’s work programme are therefore subject to change, once the 

committee work programmes are drafted for committee approval. In particular, 

reports from task and finish groups that were originally destined for other 

committees will now be returned to their originating committee for approval. 

 

3.5 A refreshed draft overview and scrutiny work programme for this committee is 

attached as appendix 1. This draft programme includes the opportunity to scrutinise 

various aspects of the council’s work to tackle COVID-19, as well as some of the 

longer-term issues arising from the impact of the pandemic.  A refreshed list of 

current task and finish groups is attached as appendix 2. 

 

4.0 Next steps 

 

4.1 Overview and scrutiny updates this report on an ongoing basis and presents it at 

each committee meeting. This will allow members the opportunity to contribute to its 

development at each committee meeting. 

 

 

List of background papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

None 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

All 

 

Local Member 

All  

 

Appendices 

Overview and scrutiny work programme 

Overview and scrutiny task and finish groups 

 

  

Page 44



   
 

   
 

Appendix 1 

Draft Performance Management Scrutiny Committee work programme 2020 

 

29 July 2020 

SEND action plan  

Climate Change 

Financial Strategy 

 

9 September 2020 

COVID – Recovery planning 

Q1 Finance Report and Q1 Performance Report 

Financial Strategy Task and Finish Group terms of reference 

 

October 2020 

TBA 

 

November 2020 

Organisational Transformation  

Q2 Finance Report and Q2 Performance Report 

Page 45



   
 

   
 

Appendix 2 

Current and proposed task and finish groups 

Title Objectives Reporting to 

Financial Strategy  

 

 To understand the process and activity stages for developing the Financial 

Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 and how these translate into the Council’s 

annual budgets 

 To consider and scrutinise the proposals and emerging plans for the whole 

Financial Strategy and 2019/20 budget, including how they align to the 

four pillars. This will be through their development and their 

implementation, in particular for innovation and raising income.  

 To consider the recommendations and areas for action identified in the 

Corporate Peer Challenge report relating to the Financial Strategy, and 

how they are being addressed.   

 To consider the direct and indirect impacts, including risks, of 2019/20 

budget proposals on current services and customers. 

 To complete specific pieces of work to identify and work up alternatives to 

emerging plans, including the feasibility of any alternative proposals 

 Make evidence based recommendations in relation to plans and 

approaches for innovation and income generation, and alternative 

proposals for future budget setting. 

 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny 

Committee  

 

 
 

P
age 46



Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 20 May 2020 Work Programme 2020-2021 

 
 

Title Objectives Reporting to 

Road casualty reduction  Understand the nature of road traffic collisions in Shropshire. 

 Understand feelings of road safety, and the effect of feeling unsafe when 

travelling. 

 Understand the factors that contribute to safer travel 

 Scrutinise how Shropshire Council and its partners work together to make 

travel safer. 

 Explore how Shropshire Council responds to new models of Government 

transport funding. 

 

Place Overview 

Committee  

 

Community Transport 

 

 To understand how community transport operates in Shropshire, and the 

demand for community transport services. 

 Identify how the community transport groups, the council, and other 

partners can work together to provide community transport to people in 

Shropshire who do not have access to public or private transport. 

 

Communities 

Overview Committee 

 

 

Brexit  To consider the information brought together to develop a view for 

Shropshire of the possible implications of Brexit for the Shropshire 

economy and the achievement of the Economic Growth Strategy. 

 To identify, with the relevant officers, the key evidence and related 

requirements of what Shropshire would require from a future UK funding 

approach.   

 To make evidence based recommendations to Cabinet. 

 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny 

Committee  

 

P
age 47



Performance Management Scrutiny Committee 20 May 2020 Work Programme 2020-2021 

 
 

Title Objectives Reporting to 

Section 106 and Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

 To understand how Shropshire Council currently uses Section 106, CIL 

and NHB and the impact that this has had 

 To understand how Section 106, CIL and NHB could be used in 

Shropshire to enable or encourage projects or initiatives for economic 

growth and prosperity  

 To learn from other places how they have used Section 106, CIL and NHB 

to enable or encourage projects or initiatives for economic growth and 

prosperity 

 To make evidence based recommendations on how Section 106, CIL and 

NHB could be used in Shropshire to enable or encourage projects or 

initiatives for economic growth and prosperity 

 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny  

Committee 

Climate Change  To review Shropshire Council’s existing work to reduce its CO2e output. 

 To scrutinise existing council policy and practice and recommend policy 

changes that would support further carbon reduction. 

 To identify and evaluate opportunities to reduce spending and generate 

income by adopting low-carbon technology and practices. 

 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny 

Committee  

Dog fouling and dangerous dogs  To scrutinise how the local authority tackles 

o dog fouling 

o dog attacks 

o stray dogs 

 licenced dog breeding 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny 

Committee  

 

 

P
age 48


	Agenda
	6 Update on the Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Local Area Inspection
	8 Financial Strategy
	9 Future Work Programme

